
Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB Solicitor

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Committee Room No. 1 (Fougères Room) - Ashford 
Borough Council on Friday, 15th June, 2018 at 10.00 am.

The Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:-

Cllrs.

Cllr.

Bradford, Feacey, Krause. 

Pickering (Reserve)

Agenda
Page Nos.

1.  Election of Chairman

2.  Apologies/Substitutes

To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2(iii)

3.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 2

To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as 
explained on the attached document:

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI)
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests
See Agenda Item 3 for further details

4.  Minutes 3 - 14

To approve the minutes of the Meeting of this Sub-Committee held on 
30 April 2018

5.  Guidance Note for Hearings 15 - 18

6.  Bottega Montelbano, 3 Highbury Lane, Tenterden, Kent, TN30 6LE 
- Application for a premises licence

19 - 66

(a) Clarification and Determination of Equal Maximum Time to be 
allocated to each party

(b) To note withdrawal of any representations



(c) The Hearing of the case

Please refer to the Guidance Notes on the procedure to be followed at this meeting as 
attached to this Agenda. 

If you know the applicant/objector(s) and have a possible conflict of interest or have any 
queries concerning the Agenda please contact Member Services (details below)

Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Member Services Tel: 01233 330499 
Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees

http://www.ashford.gov.uk/committees


Agenda Item 3

Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members”below)

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to 
items on this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest 
must be declared, and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the 
meeting for that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).

(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct as adopted 
by the Council on 19 July 2012, relating to items on this agenda.  The nature as 
well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the agenda 
item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the 
meeting before the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation 
has been granted).  However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the 
Committee in the same way that a member of the public may do so.

(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed 
under (a) and (b), i.e. announcements made for transparency reasons alone, such 
as:

 Membership of outside bodies that have made representations on agenda 
items, or

 Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close 
association with that person, or

 Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close 
associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial position.

[Note: an effect on the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc; OR an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc, would both probably constitute either an OSI or in some cases a 
DPI].

Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:  
(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf

(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012,
and a copy can be found in the Constitution at
http://www.ashford.gov.uk/part-5---codes-and-protocols 

(c) If any Councillor has any doubt about the existence or nature of any DPI or OSI 
which he/she may have in any item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice 
from the Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and Monitoring Officer or from 
other Solicitors in Legal and Democratic Services as early as possible, and in 
advance of the Meeting. Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
http://www.ashford.gov.uk/part-5---codes-and-protocols


This page is intentionally left blank



LHS/LS

Licensing Sub-Committee
Minutes of a Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 30th April 2018.

Present:

Cllr. Feacey (Chairman); 

Cllrs. Mrs Webb, White,

Cllr. Shorter (Reserve).

Also Present:

Licensing Officer, Legal Advisor, Senior Member Services Officer.

PC Alistair Pringle – Licensing Enforcement Officer, Kent Police.

Mr Chemjong – Licence Holder.

Mr Keating – Licence Holder’s Representative.

433 Election of Chairman
Resolved:

That Councillor Feacey be elected as Chairman for this Meeting of the 
Licensing Sub-Committee.

434 Minutes
Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meetings of this Sub-Committee held on the 21st 
November 2017 and 1st December 2017 be approved and confirmed as correct 
records.

435 The Gurkha Villa, 30 Bank Street, Ashford – Review of 
the Premises Licence

The Chairman opened the meeting and welcomed all those present. Members 
confirmed that they had read the papers relating to the application. The Chairman 
explained the procedure to be followed at the meeting.

The Licensing Officer then gave a brief summary of his report.  He said the 
application to be considered by the Sub-Committee was for the review of the 
premises licence under the provisions of Section 51 to the Licensing Act 2003. The 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



LHS/LS
300418

application had been made by Chief Inspector Andrew Somerville on behalf of the 
Chief Officer of Kent Police. The review was set out in Appendix A of the report. The 
grounds for the review as stated by the Applicant were various incidents involving 
violence or criminal damage at or near the premises, poor management and 
supervision and breaches of conditions over a sustained period of time. He advised 
that the premises was a Nepalese Bar and Restaurant serving hot food and playing 
live and recorded music at events. He also summarised the current opening hours 
set out in the licence. The Licensing Officer concluded by outlining the decision 
options available to the Sub-Committee.

Mr Keating introduced himself and Mr Chemjong, who had recently replaced Mr 
Dewan as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) at The Gurkha Villa. He said 
that the Company had taken the concerns of the Police very seriously and that Mr 
Chemjong acknowledged that Mr Dewan had not often been at the premises. Going 
forward, Mr Chemjong would be there a large part of the time when the premises 
was open. The venue had inherited a previous nightclub licence which had a lot of 
conditions that were inappropriate for the premises’ current use. The Police had 
suggested a number of variations to the conditions which Mr Chemjong agreed, 
particularly regarding the proposed changes in licensing hours and the use of CCTV. 
He advised that all staff would be trained in the use of the newly installed CCTV 
system and be made aware of the licensing conditions and the objectives of the 
Licensing Act. He said that there would be five staff present on Friday and Saturday 
nights and less staff during the week when the premises was less busy. The only 
issue of concern they had with the suggested conditions was the requirement for 
registered door staff as it would not be normal to have door staff at a restaurant. Mr 
Keating suggested that the premises had two trained door staff only when they were 
holding a ticketed event with music. 

Regarding the other concerns, Mr Keating confirmed that there would not be 
unaccompanied children on the premises, no off-sales permitted and confirmed that 
the primary purpose of the premises would be as a restaurant with alcohol as 
ancillary to the service of food as table meals. He hoped that the Sub-Committee 
could see that the Company had responded to the concerns of the Police and that 
they were happy with what had been put in place. 

The Sub-Committee then asked various questions of Mr Chemjong and Mr Keating, 
raising the following concerns:- 

 That whilst not the appointed DPS, Mr Chemjong had been managing the 
premises for some time and there had been a lot of problems during that 
period. The Company had had numerous opportunities to respond to the 
problems and amend their previous nightclub licence, but nothing had been 
done. Therefore, how could they have any confidence that Mr Chemjong 
would be able to improve the situation going forward? In response, Mr 
Chemjong advised that Mr Dewan had previously run the premises but had 
experienced difficulties because of also running his other restaurant in 
Aldershot. He had therefore asked Mr Chemjong to step in. Mr Chemjong had 
asked Mr Dewan many times to amend the licensing conditions, but he had 
not dealt with it.

Page 4



LHS/LS
300418

 There were also concerns about the CCTV which had not been managed 
properly for more than a year and, on two occasions, Mr Chemjong had not 
been able to provide CCTV recordings of incidents to the Police. Police and 
Licensing Officers had given a lot of guidance on the use of CCTV, in addition 
to compliance with other conditions, but again nothing had happened. In 
response Mr Chemjong said they now had a properly installed, working CCTV 
system which recorded simultaneously over a 24 hour period, and he had 
received training on its use. It was acknowledged that the previous CCTV had 
not been correctly installed, however a completely new sytem was now in 
place, and Mr Keating had been to the premises to see it and it was working 
and recording properly. Mr Chemjong was confident that if there were any 
other issues he could provide CCTV footage. 

 Members said they were also confused as to whether the premises was run 
as a restaurant, a bar or a nightclub. They were also concerned that there 
seemed to be no plan in place for Mr Chemjong to meet the licensing 
conditions and improve operation of the premises going forward. In response, 
Mr Chemjong confirmed it had been a nightclub but his Company wanted to 
run the premises properly as a restaurant. He confirmed that as yet he had no 
formal plan in place to ensure that the premises met the licensing objectives.

PC Pringle, on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police, outlined the application for a 
review of the premises licence.  The application was summarised in Appendix A of 
the report. He emphasised the two incidents of criminal damage and the serious 
disturbance involving a number of customers and glass throwing in April 2017. There 
had been poor management, failure to comply with conditions and failure to provide 
CCTV on two occasions despite warnings and guidance from the Police. Since the 
first incident on 22nd April 2017, the Police and Ashford Borough Council Officers 
had had more than 30 interactions with Mr Chemjong to coach, advise and assist. 
Those interactions were all set out at Appendix A of the report. As a result of the 
Company’s failure to respond positively to any of the advice, they had severely 
undermined the Licensing Objectives and therefore the Police considered they had 
little choice but to apply for a review of the licence. It was the view of Kent Police 
that revocation of the licence should be considered, but if not they recommended a 
number of changes in the licensing conditions, particularly with regard to hours, as 
summarised in the report. 

In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, PC Pringle said that the Police 
had real concerns about Mr Chemjong’s ability to comply with the licensing 
conditions. This was because he had been the manager throughout the whole period 
that the Police had been involved. Despite a lot of guidance and advice, in his view 
there had been no action. 

Also in response to questions, Mr Chemjong confirmed that it was one customer, a 
member of the Nepalese community, who had caused the first incident at the 
premises in April 2017. He had been banned for six months and then came back in 
January 2018 and caused criminal damage at the premises on the 15th January 
2018. However, the man had now been banned completely. Mr Chemjong confirmed 
that approximately 95% of their customers were Nepalese and 5% were others in the 
community. Finally, the Chairman asked if Mr Chemjong was going to take advice on 

Page 5



LHS/LS
300418

putting together a plan of how he would address and meet the Licensing Objectives. 
Mr Chemjong confirmed that he would do that.

The Sub-Committee then retired to deliberate and make their decision.

On return the Chairman read out the Licensing Sub-Committee’s decision and 
reasons.

The Sub-Committee were very concerned that Mr Chemjong had not put in place 
any measures during the last year despite all of the advice from the Police and 
Licensing Officers. They were mindful of the importance of the business, particularly 
to the Nepalese community, however they were very concerned about whether either 
Mr Dewan or Mr Chemjong really understood the importance of the Licensing 
Objectives. They agreed with all of the amended conditions proposed by the Police, 
but thought that Mr Chemjong should supply a clear plan of how he was going to put 
in place all of the conditions before he should be allowed to operate the licensed 
premises. For those reasons the Sub-Committee made the following decision. 

Resolved:

That the licence be varied as follows:

Timings

1. Authorised hours for all licensable activities will end at 23.00 hours 
Monday to Thursday and 00.00 hours on Friday to Sunday.

2. Opening hours (closing times of premises) will be 23.30 hours on 
Monday to Thursday and 00.30 hours on Friday to Sunday. 

3. Non-Standard timings and seasonal variations:
Bank Holiday Mondays – 11.00 to 01.00
Christmas Eve – 11.00 to 01.00
New Year’s Eve – 11.00 to 01.00

Proposed Conditions

1. Alcohol On-Sales Only

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

1. A CCTV System be installed at the premises and maintained in good and 
efficient working order to the satisfaction of both the Licensing 
Authority and Kent Police; The system will be operated by trained staff, 
be in operation at all times that the premises are being used for any 
licensable activity, ensure coverage of entrances and exits to the 
licensing premises, externally and internally and provide continuous 
recording facilities for each camera to a good standard and clarity. 
Recordings will be retained on disc or otherwise for 30 days and will be 
supplied to the Licensing Authority or Police Officer on request. 

Page 6



LHS/LS
300418

2. The License Holder will ensure that an incident record is maintained at 
the premises and all staff will be trained in its use. This will be bound 
and clearly marked with the following information: - time and date of 
incident; full description of incident; description/name of any persons 
involved in incident; actions taken by any staff member; details of all 
staff present at time of incident; name of staff member making the entry; 
time of entry. 

3. The Licence Holder will ensure that staff are fully trained in responsible 
sales of alcohol (BIIAB or equivalent) and that training records are kept.

4. The Licence Holder shall ensure that appropriate numbers of staff are on 
duty to monitor for crime and disorder. Such staff are to be trained as 
appropriate to promote the prevention of crime and disorder objective. 

5. Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied on the premises 
otherwise than to persons taking table meals there and as ancillary to 
the meal. 

6. Anyone leaving the premises will not be permitted to remove or take 
with them open bottles or containers of any kind that contain or have 
contained beverages of any type.

Public Safety 

1. A Minimum of two SIA licensed door supervisors to be present at the 
premises for any organised ticketed or advertised event as defined by 
the Licensing Authority/Kent Police. SIA registered door staff will remain 
until everyone has left the building and immediate vicinity. 

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

1. The Licence Holder will ensure where necessary that noise from the 
premises is monitored and any concerns are addressed immediately.

Protection of Children from Harm

1. Children to be accompanied by an appropriate adult in the restaurant at 
all times.

Temporary Suspension of the Licence

Although the Sub-Committee have decided to amend the Licence as 
recommended by the Police, Members are so concerned about the poor 
management of the premises over the last year, that they have decided to 
suspend the licence for a maximum period of one month to enable the 
Company to prepare and agree with the Licensing Authority a plan for how Mr 
Chemjong and all staff will be aware of and comply with the conditions on the 
licence in order to meet the Licensing Objectives.

Page 7



LHS/LS
300418

The suspension is for a maximum period of one month and it will be for the 
Licensing Authority to confirm that they are satisfied with the plan and that the 
suspension can be lifted. If that is not achieved within the month, a further 
review meeting will be held.

The decision notice and formal wording read out by the Legal Advisor is appended to 
these minutes. 
______________________________

___________________________________________________________________

Queries concerning these minutes?  Please contact Member Services:
Telephone: 01233 330349     Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk 

Page 8

http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


LHS/LS
300418

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Monday 30th April 2018

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF THE PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE 
GURKHA VILLA, 30 BANK STREET, ASHFORD, KENT, TN23 1BA UNDER THE 

PROVISIONS OF SECTION  51 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DECISION AND REASONINGS

OFFICER CASE 
STATEMENT OF :

Licensing Officer

REASON FOR 
MEETING:

An application was made by the Police to review a premises 
licence for the Gurkha Villa, 30 Bank Street, Ashford TN23 1BA.

 

DELIBERATION: The Licensing Officer summarised the review which had been 
brought by Kent Police and was set out in Appendix A of the 
report. The premises is a Nepalese Bar and Restaurant serving 
hot food and playing live and recorded music at events. The 
Officer summarised the current opening hours set out in the 
licence and the representations from Police relating to various 
incidents, poor management and supervision and breaches of 
conditions over a sustained period of time. 

Mr Keating, Solicitor for Gurkha Villas, confirmed that Mr 
Chemjong has applied for and been appointed as Designated 
Premises Supervisor (DPS), replacing Mr Dewan the previous 
DPS. He said that Mr Chemjong acknowledged that Mr Dewan 
was not often at the premises. Mr Chemjong would be there a 
large part if the time when it was open. He had inherited a previous 
nightclub licence which had a lot of conditions that were 
inappropriate for the premises’ current use. The Police had 
suggested a number of varied conditions which Mr Chjemjong 
agrees, particularly re. the change in licensing hours and use of 
CCTV. All staff will be trained in use of the CCTV and be made 
aware of the licensing conditions. He said that there will be five 
staff present on Friday and Saturday nights and less staff during 
the week when the premises is less busy. The only issue of 
concern was the requirement for registered door staff as it was not 
normal to have door staff for a restaurant. He suggested that the 
premises had two trained door staff only when there is a ticket 
event with music. 

Re the other concerns Mr Keating confirmed that there would not 
be unaccompanied children on the premises, no off-sales and the 

Page 9



LHS/LS
300418

primary purpose of the premises would be as a restaurant with 
alcohol as ancillary to the service of food. 

The Sub-Committee asked various questions of Mr Chemjong and 
Mr Keating and raised the following concerns:- 

1. That Mr Chemjong had been managing the premises for 
some time, there had been a lot of problems during the time 
and he had had adequate time to respond to the problems 
and amend their previous nightclub licence. In response Mr 
Chemjong that Mr Dewan had previously run the premises 
but had difficulty because of his other restraurant in 
Aldershot so had asked Mr Chemjong to step in. Mr 
Chemjong had asked Mr Dewan many times to amend the 
licensing conditions, but he had not dealt with it.

2. Concerns about the CCTV which had not been managed 
properly for more than a year and on two occasions Mr 
Chemjong had not been able to provide CCTV recordings of 
incidents to the Police. Police and Licensing Officers had 
given a lot of guidance on use of CCTV, in addition to 
compliance with other conditions, but nothing had 
happened. In response Mr Chemjong said they now had a 
properly installed, working CCTV system which records 
simultaneously over a 24 hour period, and he has had 
training on its use. He is confident that if there are any other 
issues he can provide CCTV footage. 

3. That the Sub-Committee was confused as to whether the 
premises were run as a restaurant, bar or nightclub. They 
were also concerned that there seemed to be no plan in 
place for Mr Chemjong to meet the licensing conditions and 
improve operation of the premises going forward. In 
response, Mr Chemjong confirmed it had been a nightclub 
but his company wanted to run the premises properly as a 
restaurant. He confirmed that as yet he has no plan in place 
to ensure that the premises meets the licensing objectives.

PC Pringle then summarised the grounds of application for the 
review which are summarised in Appendix A of the report. He 
emphasised the two incidents of criminal damage and the serious 
disturbance involving a number of customers and glass throwing in 
April 2017. There has been poor management, failure to comply 
with conditions and failure to provide CCTV on two occasions 
despite warnings and guidance from the Police. Since the first 
incident on 22nd April 2017 the Police and Ashford Borough Council 
have had more than 30 interactions with Mr Chemjong to coach, 
advise and assist. Those interactions are all set out at Appendix A 
of the report. Because of the Company’s failure to respond 
positively to any of the advice, the Company had severely 

Page 10



LHS/LS
300418

undermined the Licensing Objectives and therefore the Police had 
no choice but to apply for a review of the licence. In place of 
revocation, they recommend changes in the licensing conditions as 
summarised in the report. 

PC Pringle said that the Police had real concerns about Mr 
Chemjong’s ability to comply with the licensing conditions. This is 
because he has been the manager throughout the whole period 
that the Police have been involved. Despite a lot of guidance and 
advice there had been no action. In response to various questions 
from the Sub-Committee Mr Chemjong confirmed that he had been 
a Director of the Company since 2017 and Mr Dewan was still 
involved as a business partner. He explained that he had 
repeatedly asked Mr Dewan, as DPS, to put in place compliance 
with the licensing objectives, but Mr Dewan never did anything. He 
also explained that the CCTV Engineer had not installed the CCTV 
correctly the first time, however he has now changed the system 
completely, Mr Keating has been to the premises to see it and it is 
working and recording properly. 

Mr Chemjong also confirmed that it was one customer, a member 
of the Nepalese community, who had caused the first incident in 
April 2017. He was banned for six months and then came back in 
January 2018 and caused criminal damage on the 15th January 
2018. However the man was now banned completely. Mr 
Chemjong confirmed that 95% of their customers were Nepalese 
and 5% others in the community. 

Finally, the Chairman asked if Mr Chemjong was going to take 
advice on putting together a plan of how he would address and 
meet the Licensing Objectives. Mr Chemjong confirmed that he 
would do that.

The Sub-Committee then retired to deliberate and make their 
decision.

The Sub-Committee were very concerned that Mr Chemjong had 
not put in place any measures during the last year despite all of the 
advice from the Police and Licensing Officers. They were mindful 
of the importance of the business, particularly to the Nepalese 
community, however they were very concerned about whether 
either Mr Dewan or Mr Chemjong really understood the importance 
of the Licensing Objectives. They agreed with all of the amended 
conditions proposed by the Police but thought that Mr Chemjong 
should supply a clear plan of how he was going to put in place all 
of the conditions before he should be allowed to operate the 
licensed premises. For those reasons the Sub-Committee made 
the following decision. 

DECISION MADE: That:

Page 11



LHS/LS
300418

The licence be varied as follows:

Timings

1. Authorised hours for all licensable activities will 
end at 23.00 hours Monday to Thursday and 00.00 
hours on Friday to Sunday.

2. Opening hours (closing times of premises) will be 
23.30 hours on Monday to Thursday and 00.30 hours 
on Friday to Sunday. 

3. Non-Standard timings and seasonal variations:
Bank Holiday Mondays – 11.00 to 01.00
Christmas Eve – 11.00 to 01.00
New Year’s Eve – 11.00 to 01.00

Proposed Conditions

1. Alcohol On-Sales Only

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

1. A CCTV System be installed at the premises and 
maintained in good and efficient working order to 
the satisfaction of both the Licensing Authority 
and Kent Police; The system will be operated by 
trained staff, be in operation at all times that the 
premises are being used for any licensable 
activity, ensure coverage of entrances and exits 
to the licensing premises, externally and 
internally and provide continuous recording 
facilities for each camera to a good standard and 
clarity. Recordings will be retained on disc or 
otherwise for 30 days and will be supplied to the 
Licensing Authority or Police Officer on request. 

2. The License Holder will ensure that an incident 
record is maintained at the premises and all staff 
will be trained in its use. This will be bound and 
clearly marked with the following information: - 
time and date of incident; full description of 
incident; description/name of any persons 
involved in incident; actions taken by any staff 
member; details of all staff present at time of 
incident; name of staff member making the entry; 
time of entry. 

3. The Licence Holder will ensure that staff are fully 

Page 12



LHS/LS
300418

trained in responsible sales of alcohol (BIIAB or 
equivalent) and that training records are kept.

4. The Licence Holder shall ensure that appropriate 
numbers of staff are on duty to monitor for crime 
and disorder. Such staff are to be trained as 
appropriate to promote the prevention of crime 
and disorder objective. 

5. Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied 
on the premises otherwise than to persons taking 
table meals there and as ancillary to the meal. 

6. Anyone leaving the premises will not be permitted 
to remove or take with them open bottles or 
containers of any kind that contain or have 
contained beverages of any type.

Public Safety 

1. A Minimum of two SIA licensed door supervisors 
to be present at the premises for any organised 
ticketed or advertised event as defined by the 
Licensing Authority/Kent Police. SIA registered 
door staff will remain until everyone has left the 
building and immediate vicinity. 

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

1. The Licence Holder will ensure where necessary 
that noise from the premises is monitored and 
any concerns are addressed immediately.

Protection of Children from Harm

1. Children to be accompanied by an appropriate 
adult in the restaurant at all times.

Temporary Suspension of the Licence

Although the Sub-Committee have decided to amend the 
Licence as recommended by the Police, Members are so 
concerned about the poor management of the premises over 
the last year, that they have decided to suspend the licence 
for a maximum period of one month to enable the Company to 
prepare and agree with the Licensing Authority a plan for how 
Mr Chemjong and all staff will be aware of and comply with the 
conditions on the licence in order to meet the Licensing 
Objectives.

Page 13



LHS/LS
300418

The suspension is for a maximum period of one month and it 
will be for the Licensing Authority to confirm that they are 
satisfied with the plan and that the suspension can be lifted. If 
that is not achieved within the month, a further review meeting 
will be held.

Additional notes made by the Sub-Committee at the meeting – 

Right of Appeal 

 This decision does not take effect until 
(a) The end of the period given for appealing the decision or
(b) If the decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of.

An appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the Appellant to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of the date of this notice.

Page 14



D:\Ashford\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\9\AI00000929\$daeom1de.doc page 1 01/06/2018 12:46

PROCEDURE NOTE FOR LICENSING HEARINGS

1. Prior to the meeting of the Committee1, the Committee will have read and 
familiarised themselves with the Licensing Officer’s report and documents 
referred to in it.

2. The hearing will take place in public, subject to a discretion to exclude the 
public and/or parties where the public interest in doing so outweighs the 
public interest in the hearing taking place in public2. The Committee may 
also exclude anyone behaving disruptively.3

3. The parties4 are entitled to be assisted or represented by any person, 
whether or not legally qualified.  A party is entitled to withdraw any of their 
representations orally at the hearing or at least 24 hours before the day or 
the first day of the hearing.5 

4. The Committee may extend any time limit in the Regulations for a 
specified period where it considers this to be necessary in the public 
interest, but must state the period of the extension and the reason for it.6 
For example, the Committee may extend the time for making a request to 
call a witness (see paragraph 16- below).

5. Where a party has notified the authority that he does not intend to attend, 
the Committee will proceed with the hearing in his absence. Where he 
has not so notified the authority but does not attend, the Committee may 
adjourn the hearing to a specified date where it considers it necessary in 
the public interest to do so.  Otherwise, it will proceed with the hearing.7

6. Before proceeding in the absence of a party who has not indicated that 
they do not wish to attend, the Licensing Officer will attempt to ascertain 
the reason for that party’s non-attendance.

7. The Committee may adjourn the hearing to a specified, or extra, date 
where it considers this to be necessary for the determination of the case.8 
There are limitations on the ability of the Committee to adjourn the case 
beyond the time limits for determination during the transitional period and 
on reviews following closure orders by the police.9

8. At the outset of the meeting, a Chair will be elected and any personal 
and/or prejudicial interests declared.10

1 In this Note the expression “the Committee” includes a sub Committee.
2 Reg 14 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005
3 Reg 25.
4 Reg 2(1) “a person to whom notice of the hearing is to be given under Reg 6(1)” – includes 

objectors and responsible authorities, such as the Police.
5 Reg 10
6 Reg 11.
7 Reg 20.
8 Reg 12.
9 Reg 13.
10 Model Code of Conduct

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



D:\Ashford\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\9\AI00000929\$daeom1de.doc page 2 01/06/2018 12:46

9. Except where the Regulations make specific requirements, the procedure 
will be in the discretion of the Committee.11

10. At the beginning of the hearing, the Committee will explain to the parties 
the procedure it proposes to follow.12 

11. The Chairman will indicate that all the papers before the Committee have 
been read and that the Committee is familiar with the issues. He will ask 
the parties to avoid repetition.

12. The Chairman will indicate the order of presentation.

13. If there are a number of objectors present, the Chairman may request that 
a spokesperson be appointed. He will make it clear that any party13 who 
wishes to speak will be able to do so, and that the appointment of a 
spokesperson does not mean that the objections of any interested party 
will be given less weight. 

14. The Chairman may also indicate how the Committee intends to deal with 
conditions proposed by the parties or by the Committee itself. He may ask 
the parties to attempt to agree a schedule of conditions for use if the 
Committee is minded to grant the application. This will not mean that the 
Committee has formed any view of the merits. It will only come to its 
decision at the end. 

15. A party is entitled to be represented or assisted by another person, 
whether or not that person is legally qualified. 14

16. If a party wishes a person (other than himself or his representative) to 
appear at the hearing he must have made a request to do so prior to the 
hearing within the times prescribed in Reg. 8. The request must name the 
person and give a brief description of the point(s) on which that person 
may be able to assist. In such a case, the Committee will determine the 
application for permission at the outset of the hearing.15 In determining 
that request, the authority will consider the representations of all parties 
upon the matter and may consider the relevance of the proposed 
evidence, the assistance it will in fact offer to the Committee and the 
prejudice to the parties, if the evidence is admitted or excluded.16

17. Each of the parties has a right to:

a. address the Committee;

b. give clarification of any point, where such clarification has been sought 
by the Council in its notice of hearing;

c. question any other party, but only where this is expressly permitted by 
the Committee (see para 21 below).17

11 Reg 21.
12 Reg 22
13 see footnote 4
14 Reg 15.
15 Reg 22
16 Reg 22
17 Reg 16.

Page 16



D:\Ashford\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\9\AI00000929\$daeom1de.doc page 3 01/06/2018 12:46

18. The Committee must allow an equal maximum time for the parties to 
exercise their rights as set out in para 17 above.18 

19. The Committee will set the time of the hearing at the outset, having regard 
to its view of the length reasonably required for the hearing. It may hear 
the parties briefly before setting the maximum time. It may extend the time 
where circumstances require.19

20. The hearing is to take the form of a discussion led by the Committee.20 
The Chairman will ensure that within the discussions, all parties are given 
an opportunity to state their case as set out in their written application/ 
representations and to meet the case of opposing parties.

21. Cross-examination will not be permitted unless the Committee considers 
that it is required for it to give proper consideration to the case.21 Any 
application to cross-examine will be heard and dealt with at the hearing.

22. The Committee may consider cross-examination to be required, for 
example, where there is a genuine issue of fact, which can only be 
resolved fairly through cross-examination. 

23. The Committee may question any party or other person(s) appearing.22

24. The Committee may take into account documentary or other information 
provided by a party before the hearing. Information produced at the 
hearing may only be taken into account with the consent of all other 
parties.23 The parties are therefore strongly recommended to exchange 
documentary evidence and brief summaries of any proposed witness 
evidence at least 5 days before the hearing, otherwise they may be 
restricted in the information they can put before the committee. Any 
material exchanged should also be given to the licensing authority at the 
same time.

25. The Committee must disregard any information given which is not 
relevant to the application, representations or notice of the party giving the 
information.  The Committee must also disregard any information which is 
not relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.24

26. In certain circumstances, the Committee is required by law to make its 
determination at the conclusion of the hearing. This includes certain 
applications made during the transitional period, counter-notices following 
police objections to temporary events notices, and reviews of premises 
licences following closure orders. Otherwise the Committee is required to 
determine the application within five working days of the day or the last 
day on which the hearing was held25.

18 Reg 24.
19 Reg 11
20 Reg 23.
21 Reg 23.
22 Reg 17.
23 Reg 18.
24 Reg 19.
25 Reg 26.

Page 17



D:\Ashford\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\9\AI00000929\$daeom1de.doc page 4 01/06/2018 12:46

27. The Committee will give reasons for its decision and will confirm the 
decision in writing to the parties.

Page 18



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

Agenda Item No:

Licence Reference WK/201802967

Report To: LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
Date:  23 MAY 2018
Report Title: Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a premises licence 

for: Bottega Montelbano, 3 Highbury Lane, Tenterden, 
Kent, TN30 6LE

Report Author: Julian Postlethwaite

Summary: The report advises Members of a licence application under the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.  

Application type:     Application for a premises licence  
Applicant: Bottega Montelbano
Premises: 3 Highbury Lane, Tenterden, Kent, 

TN30 6LE 

Members are asked to determine whether to grant the 
premises licence, with or without additional conditions 
pursuant to the Act

Key Decision: NO 

Affected Wards: Tenterden south
Recommendations: The Committee is asked to determine the application and 

decide whether to grant the premises licence, with or 
without additional conditions pursuant to the Act.

Policy Overview: The decision is to be made with regard to the Licensing Act 
2003, Secretary of State's Guidance issued under Section 182 
of the Act and the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy. 
Where the decision departs from the Policy or Guidance the 
departure must be directed solely at the attainment of the 
licensing objectives, and such departure must be supported by 
clear and cogent reasons.

Financial 
Implications:

The costs associated with processing the application are 
taken from licensing fee income.

Other Material 
Implications:

HUMAN RIGHTS: In considering this application the Sub 
Committee will balance the competing Human Rights of the 
various parties including the right to respect for private and 
family life, the protection of property and the right to a fair 
hearing. 

LEGAL: Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Council has a duty 
to exercise licensing control of relevant premises. 

Exemption Clauses: Not applicable
Background None

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

Papers:

Contacts: Julian.Postlethwaite@ashford.gov.uk

Agenda Item No. 5

Report Title: Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a premises licence, 
Bottega Montelbano, 3 Highbury Lane, Tenterden, Kent, 
TN30 6LE

Purpose of the Report 

1. The report advises Members of a licence application under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

Application type: Application for a premises licence

Applicant: Bottega Montelbano Ltd

Premises: Bottega Montelbano, 3 Highbury Lane, Tenterden, 
Kent, TN30 6LE

Issue to be Decided

2. Members are asked to determine whether to grant the premises licence, with or 
without additional conditions pursuant to the Act.

Background

The Licensing Objectives

3. The licensing authority must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act 
2003 with a view to promoting the licensing objectives namely, the prevention 
of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the 
protection of children from harm (LA 2003, s4 (1)).

Application details

4. The application is for a premises licence. See Appendix A for the application 
for a premises licence, along with a plan of the internal layout of the premises 
(Appendix B) The application has been made and advertised in the correct 
manner. Licensing officers confirmed that the public notice was on display at 
the premises on Monday 14 May 2018.By means of background, a planning 
application was received (17/01279/AS) for prior approval of the change of 
use from A1 (Retail) to A3 use (Delicatessen) and  determination was made 
that prior approval was not required under general permitted development 
(Appendix C) and the following conditions were included;

 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of 3 years from the date of this application.

Page 20



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

 Reason: To comply with the requirements of Class C, 
Part 3 schedule 2 of the Town and Country(General 
Permitted Development) order 2015

 The premise shall not be open to the public other than between the 
hours of 08:00-7:00pm Monday to Sunday.

 Reason: To protect the residential amenity of the 
locality.

 The development approved shall be made available for inspection, 
at a reasonable time, by the local Planning authority to ascertain 
whether a breach of planning control may have occurred on the 
land(As a result of departure from the plans hereby approved and 
the specific terms of this permission/consent/approval)

 Reason: In the interests of ensuring the proper 
planning of the locality, the protection of the amenity 
and the environment, securing high quality 
development through adherence to the terms of 
planning approvals and to ensure community 
confidence in the operation of the planning system.

It should be noted that the A3 class use  includes The sale of food and drink 
for consumption on the premises including as a restaurant, snack bar or cafe. 
As such it is the understanding of the Licensing Team that the premises 
already has the existing right to open without the licensable activities.

It should also be noted that the licensing process cannot be used as a 
‘second bite of the cherry’ to consider matters relevant to the planning 
application, but must instead concern themselves specifically with the 
licensable activities proposed. 

5. A location map of the premises and surrounding area can be found at 
Appendix D.

6. The applicant states within section M of the application form (The Operating 
schedule) the additional steps they intend to take in order to promote the four 
licensing objectives if the proposed application is granted. 

7. The Operating schedule put forward by the applicant are listed in Appendix 
E, and will form part of the conditions on the premises licence. It is the 
responsibility of the Licensing Authority to prepare conditions that are 
“consistent” with the operating schedule (s.18).  

8. The Licensing Authority should not issue a licence with conditions that are 
illegal or that are unenforceable.

Representations from Responsible Authorities

There are no representations from the relevant Responsible Authorities.

Representations have been received from local residents.

Page 21



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

9. Under section 35(5) of the Licensing Act 2003, representations are relevant if 
they are about the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives and (subsection 6) are made by an interested party or 
responsible authority within the prescribed period, are not withdrawn or, in the 
opinion of the licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious

10. The prescribed period for the receipt of such representations in this case is, 
by Regulation 22(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 Regulations 2005 "during a 
period of 28 consecutive days starting on the day after the day on which the 
application to which it relates was given to the authority by the applicant". 

11. Three parties have made representations, these are listed in Appendix F and 
the representations in full can be found at Appendix G accompanied by three 
photographs of the location.

12. Two of the representations are from residents living in Highbury lane

The main concerns arising from the representations is the potential for noise 
nuisance, traffic issues and congestion including deliveries to the premises in a 
narrow road, an increase in noise from customers drinking outside the café, and 
associated increased footfall. 

Relevant premises operating hours 

13. The application proposes to permit:

Sale of alcohol Monday to Sunday
08:00 – 19:00

Hours premises open to 
the public

Monday to Sunday
08:00 – 19:00

General

14. Members attention is drawn to the following matters: 

 All applications are to be considered on their merits as well as against the 
relevant policy and statutory framework.

 Due regard should be given to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 
1998, Race Relations Act 1976 as amended by the Race Relations 
(Amendment) Act 2000 and Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 and, so far as possible, reflect local crime prevention strategies.

 The operating schedule forms part of the completed application form for a 
premises licence. The operating schedule should include information, 
which is necessary to enable any responsible authority or other party to 
assess whether the steps to be taken to promote licensing objectives are 
satisfactory.

Page 22



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion 
has been engaged following the making of relevant representations and it 
has been satisfied at a hearing of the appropriateness to impose 
conditions due to the representations raised. It may then only impose such 
conditions as are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives arising 
out of the consideration of the representations. However, in order to 
minimise problems and the necessity for hearings, it would be sensible for 
applicants to consult with responsible authorities when schedules are 
being prepared. This would allow for proper liaison before representations 
prove necessary. 

 Where problems have occurred, the application for the new licence will 
afford an opportunity for responsible authorities and other parties to raise 
the issue through representations and for conditions addressing any 
nuisance previously caused to be attached following a hearing where 
necessary. The views of local residents will be important in establishing 
the extent of any history of problems.

 The conditions put forward within this report are suggested on the basis of:

o information contained within the application form;

o interested parties representations and 

o on those measures currently in existence.  

 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, 
through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and 
what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific 
premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important 
that in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable 
activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including 
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise 
nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

 Public nuisance is not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its 
broad common law meaning for the Act’s purposes. It is important to 
remember that the prevention of public nuisance could therefore include 
low-level nuisance, perhaps affecting a few people living locally, as well as 
major disturbance affecting the whole community. It may also include in 
appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity 
of other parties living and working in the area of a licensed premises. 
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of artificial light, dust, odour and 
insects or where its effect its prejudicial to health. 

 Where applications have given rise to representations, any necessary and 
appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive 
periods. For example, music noise from premises usually occurs from mid-
evening until either late evening or early morning when residents in 
adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. In 
certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise may also prove 
necessary to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and 

Page 23



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

leave the premises and therefore, in the immediate vicinity of the 
premises.

 In the context of preventing public nuisance, it is essential that conditions 
are focused on measures within the direct control of the licence holder. 
Conditions relating to public nuisance caused by the anti-social behaviour 
of customers once they are beyond the control of the licence holder, or 
premises management cannot be justified and will not serve to promote 
the licensing objectives in relation to the licensing activities carried on at 
the premises. Beyond the vicinity of the premises, these are matters for 
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who 
engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in his own right. However, 
it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a 
condition it considered appropriate following relevant representations from 
an interested party that requires the licence holder to place signs at the 
exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the 
area and to respect the rights of people living near-by to a peaceful night. 
After a licence has been granted or varied, a complaint relating to a 
general (crime and disorder) situation in a town centre should generally 
not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be positively 
tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would 
allow for a proper review of the licence. 

 The Guidance states “the conditions that are appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives should emerge initially from the risk assessment 
carried out by a prospective licence or certificate holder, which they should 
carry out before making their application for a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps recorded in 
the operating schedule or club operating schedule which must also set out 
the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted 
and any other hours during which the premises will be open to the public.”

 It is perfectly possible that in certain cases, because the test is one of 
appropriateness, where there are other legislative provisions, which are 
relevant and must be observed by the applicant, no additional conditions 
at all are needed to promote the licensing objectives.

Decision options

15. The steps an authority may take are:

a) Grant the licence subject to

i) Such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule 
accompanying the application modified to such an extent as the 
authority considers necessary for the promotion of the four 
licensing objectives, and

ii) any conditions which must under section 19, 20, or 21  of the 
Licensing Act 2003 be included in the licence (the mandatory 
conditions).

Page 24



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

b) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates.

c) Refuse to specify the person named in the application as the 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS).

d) Reject the application.

Consultation

16. All relevant parties have followed the consultation procedures required under 
the Licensing Act 2003.

Implications Assessment

17. The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance 
and the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. 
Where the decision departs from either the Guidance or the policy clear and 
cogent reasons must be given. Members should be aware that if such a 
departure is made the risk of appeal / challenge is increased.

Human Rights

18. While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular 
relevance to the application are:

 Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life
 Article 1 of the First Protocol - Protection of Property
 Article 10 – Freedom of Expression

The full text of each Article is given in the attached Appendix F.

Handling

19. The timings for handling the application are set out in the Licensing Act 2003 
and related regulations.

Conclusion

20. Members must ensure that the application is considered on its merits, as well 
as against the relevant guidance, policy and statutory framework.

Page 25



EH47-01 REPORT 01/06/2018 

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41



Page 42



P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX E

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE APPLICANTS OPERATING SCHEDULE 

General

1. The designated premises supervisor will ensure that the premises is 
responsibly supervised at all times to ensure the promotion of the four licensing 
objectives

2. The designated premises supervisor will ensure that all staff are trained 
commensurate with their work activities in order to promote the four licensing 
objectives

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

3. The designated premises supervisor and all staff will at all times be aware of 
their responsibility for the prevention of crime and disorder on the premises and 
demonstrate a responsible attitude to the marketing and sale of alcohol

4. The designated premises supervisor will become a member of any relevant 
local crime reduction initiative

5. The designated premises supervisor will install, maintain and operate a digital 
CCTV system covering both the inside and outside of the premises. Recordings 
will be maintained for a minimum of 31 days

Public Safety

6. The designated premises supervisor will ensure that the fire risk assessment 
for the licensed premises is implemented and updated on a regular basis. The 
fire risk assessment will be maintained at the licensed premises and will be 
available for inspection. 

7. The designated premises supervisor will ensure that a health and safety risk 
assessment for the licensed premises is implemented and updated on a regular 
basis. The Health and Safety risk assessment will be maintained at the licensed 
premises and will be available for inspection

8. The designated premises supervisor will ensure that all staff undertake training 
in licensing law, drugs, underage drinking and health and safety as 
commensurate to their work activities

9. The designated premises supervisor will ensure that sufficient staff are 
employed and on duty as appropriate to ensure the safety of the premises and 
customers

10.The designated premises supervisor will ensure that all appliances and systems 
relevant to public safety are regularly tested and covered by appropriate 
certification

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

11.The designated premises supervisor will ensure that no external music 
speakers are used

12.The designated premises supervisor will ensure that the collection and disposal 
of refuse is managed to minimise any disturbance to neighbours

Page 45



13.The designated premises supervisor will ensure that customers are requested 
to leave the premises quietly

The Protection of Children From Harm

14.The designated premises supervisor will through the operation of a recognised 
‘proof of age’ scheme ensure that anyone is appears to be under 18 and is 
attempting to buy alcohol or is consuming alcohol on the premises will be asked 
to provide adequate and accepted proof of age.

Page 46



APPENDIX F 

REPRESENTATIONS FROM RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES AND INTERESTED 
PARTIES (OBJECTIONS)

Name Address 

Mr Dennis Langford. 2 Highbury lane, Tenterden. TN30 6LE

Sally Ward and Joanne Lusted. 1 Highbury Lane, Tenterden, Kent,
TN30 6LE

Tenterden Town Council. Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden TN30 
6AN

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



APPENDIX H - HUMAN RIGHTS

Article 8

1. Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 
correspondence.

2. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right 
except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic 
society in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being 
of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health 
or morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others.

Article 1 of the First Protocol

Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. 
No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest and subject 
to the conditions provided for by law and by the general principles of international law. 
The preceding provisions shall not, however, in any way impair the right of a State to 
enforce such laws, as it deems necessary to control the use of property in accordance 
with the general interest or to secure the payment of taxes or other contributions or 
penalties.

Article 10

3. Everyone has the right to freedom of expression. This right shall include freedom 
to hold opinions and to receive and impart information and ideas without 
interference by public authority and regardless of frontiers. This Article shall not 
prevent States from requiring the licensing of broadcasting, television or cinema 
enterprises. 

4. The exercise of these freedoms, since it carries with it duties and responsibilities, 
may be subject to such formalities, conditions, restrictions or penalties as are 
prescribed by law and are necessary in a democratic society, in the interests of 
national security, territorial integrity or public safety, for the prevention of disorder 
or crime, for the protection of health or morals, for the protection of the reputation 
or rights of others, for preventing the disclosure of information received in 
confidence, or for maintaining the authority and impartiality of the judiciary.

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes
	5 Guidance Note for Hearings
	6 Bottega Montelbano, 3 Highbury Lane, Tenterden, Kent, TN30 6LE - Application for a premises licence
	Appendix A application forms_
	Appendix B floor plan
	Appendix C. Planning approval
	Appendix D. Premises location
	APPENDIX E & F
	Appendix G representations_
	APPENDIX H


